
 

 

 

 

City of Mt. Angel 
 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 

 

May 2, 2016 

 



MT. ANGEL CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
290 East Charles Street – Community Meeting Room 

Monday, May 2, 2016 

Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall at least 

one business day in advance at 503-845-9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may be available with 

sufficient prior notice of need.  

 
 

 

6:30 p.m. EXECUTIVE SESSION – Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d) 

Pertaining to deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations. 

 

7:00 p.m. REGULAR MEETING 

1. Call to Order  

2. Flag Salute  

3. Roll Call 

4. Presentations, Guests, and Announcements 

5. Appearance of Interested Citizens - please limit comments to three (3) minutes. 

6. Review Correspondence  

7. Review Written Staff Reports  

8. Review Accounts Payable   

9. Consent Agenda 

a. Approve City Council Meeting Minutes for April 5, 2016  
b. Approve Liquor License for Touch of Bavaria 

10. Unfinished Business 

a. Action on Item(s) Discussed During Executive Session  

11. New Business 

a. Appointment of Interim City Manager and Approval of Contract for City Manager Recruitment, 

Recruitment Timeline and Position Profile 

b. Bank Signature Authorization – A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED 

CHECK SIGNERS WITHIN THE COUNCIL BODY AND CITY STAFF EFFECTIVE 

MAY 21, 2016.  

c. Recreational Vehicle Parking Exemption – A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A TEMPORARY 
EXEMPTION TO THE RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARKING PROHIBITION CONTAINED IN 
MT. ANGEL MUNICIPAL CODE 70.56 FOR THE 100 BLOCK OF NORTH CLEVELAND ST. 
EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE THROUGH MAY 4, 2016.  

d. Mt. Angel Telephone Franchise Agreement - AN ORDINANCE GRANTING MOUNT ANGEL 
TELEPHONE COMPANY A FRANCHISE TO OPERATE WITHIN THE CITY OF MT. ANGEL 
AND TO PLACE, ERECT, MAINTAIN, LAY AND OPERATE IN, UPON, OVER AND UNDER 
THE PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY NECESSARY WIRES AND OTHER APPURTENANCES  TO 
PROVIDE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF MT. ANGEL. 

e. Approval of Façade Improvement Program Phase II Grant(s)  

12.   City Manager’s Report   

13.  Councilor/Committee Reports          

14.  Mayor’s Report 

15.  Adjournment   



 

 

 

CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

May 2016 

Department    
Reports 

 
 
 
 
 

Item #7

Page 3 of 59



 

Eileen Stein 
City Manager 
estein@ci.mt-angel.or.us 
503-845-9291 
 
 
FY 2016-17 Goals 
 
1. Continue to evaluate new General Fund revenue sources to promote community livability (walkability, 

beautiful parks, library, and police protection) and make progress toward the city’s 2035 vision. 
 

Budget Committee recommendations for FY 16-17 Budget include franchise fee increases for Mt. Angel Telephone and 
PGE, new Business Registration Fee, and addition of staff hours for the Children’s Librarian and park maintenance.    

   
2. Continue the process of analyzing costs and revenue sources for maintaining city, and possibly county 

infrastructure inside city limits, through the Infrastructure Task Force. 
 
Budget Committee recommendations for FY 16-17 include all of the recommendations of the Infrastructure Task Force.  

 
3. Implement Phase II of the Mt. Angel Development Code update project. 
  

Contract for Phase II is signed and being processed by ODOT/TGM staff.   
 
4. Continue planning and community outreach efforts on solutions for City Hall and the Police 

Department facilities. 
  

Ceiling repair in progress. Structural assessment complete.  See attached report.  
 
Reservoir Overflow Water Damage 
The insurance claim for damage to the Carmelite House of Study basement due to the overflow of the water 
reservoir is complete.  CIS covered all costs, except $1,978, as not all costs were covered based on full 
replacement costs.  The Study House requests the City cover this remaining amount.    
 
Noise Complaint re Garbage and Street Sweeping Activities 
We have received a complaint about excessive noise due to garbage collection and street sweeping activities 
in the early morning hours before 7 a.m.  The complaint comes from a citizen living in the vicinity of the 
downtown area which is usually served in the early morning hours while the streets are relatively vacant.  
This is a long standing practice according to Public Works.  Residential areas are served later in the morning, 
after 7 a.m., when the opposite is the case.  The citizen is requesting the City comply with the City Code.  
The options are to reschedule Public Works and Republic Services operations, or grant exceptions in the 
Code for these activities.   
 
City Manager Recruitment 
This agenda includes approval for a contract with the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments to 
conduct a recruitment process for City Manager and appointment of Chief Healy as your Interim City 
Manager.  My last day will be May 20.  It has been a pleasure to serve the City of Mt. Angel!   
 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION  

 

Item #7

Page 4 of 59



 

Justin Hogue 
Assistant to the City Manager 
jhogue@ci.mt-angel.or.us 
503-845-9291 
 
 
Façade Improvement Program 
The City has received additional information and revised submittals from several of the applicants based upon 
feedback from the Design Review Board.  
 
Permits 
The City issued one building permit for a new single family home and received an additional 3 building 
applications for new single family homes. These permits have met Mt. Angel zoning requirements and are 
now being reviewed by Marion County.  
 
Planning Activity 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on Thursday, April 21st to consider a site design and major 
variance application for a triplex proposed at 555 N. Main Street. The Planning Commission voted by a 3 to 
2 vote to deny the application based on MADC Section 4.5 (a), which states, “The variance requested is the 
minimum variance which would alleviate the hardship.” 
 
The planning commission found that the applicant’s proposal was not the minimum variance that could be 
requested.  They cited the applicant’s proposal for the side yard setback could have been less and still have 
accommodated the request to build a triplex on this lot.  
 
The applicant has indicated that they intend to appeal the Planning Commission’s decision, which they have 
12 days to apply for after the notice of decision has been mailed. If the applicant appeals the Planning 
Commission’s decision, the appeal will be brought before the Council for a final decision. 
 
The City and Marion County met with the Schools District’s project manager and team for a pre-
construction meeting to discuss the scope of work in the E. Marquam Street right of way. This work is 
related to the new administrative office for the Mt. Angel School District. The admin. office is scheduled to 
be completed by May 20th. 
 
Develop Code Update 
The intergovernmental agreement for phase II of the Development Code updated has been signed and executed. 
The first task in phase II is to begin drafting text amendments for the Code. These amendments will be brought 
before the Council and Planning Commission during a joint work session and finally brought before the Council 
in a public hearing, as required by law, to adopt the amendments into the Development Code. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 

 

Item #7

Page 5 of 59



 

Chaunee Seifried 
Finance Director 
cseifried@ci.mt-angel.or.us 
503-845-9291 
 
 
Budget 
The Budget Committee had two budget meetings on April 18th and April 21st.  They are sending a 
recommended budget to the City Council for the June 6th meeting.  They recommended the budget to 
include all of the decision packages except for #3, the library director’s office.    
 

Utility Billing 
$2147 is 90 days past due.   
63 shut off notices were mailed out. 
6 customers had water shut off and 4 were turned back on.  
 
Court  
Court fine revenues for the month were $4637. Out of that, a check in the amount of $914 was sent to 
Oregon Department of Revenue, and a check in the amount of $306 was sent to Marion County Treasurer. 
These amounts represent the assessments that were due for the month of April. 
 
Two checks were received, totaling the amount $1523. This amount represents citations that were written 
outside of the City limits that were either prosecuted in Justice Court or Circuit Court for traffic and 
criminal matters. 
 
The next court session is May 11th. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCE 

Item #7

Page 6 of 59



 

Carrie Alexandria Caster 
Library Director 
ccaster@ci.mt-angel.or.us 
503-845-9291 
 
 
Summer Reading Planning/Connections with Local Schools 
We are busily planning away for a fantastic Summer Reading Program to start June 17th! We have fun new 
things in the works for this year. Like last year, all ages will be invited to join and we’ll have an exciting slate 
of summer performers every week during the program!  We’ve also been working hard to connect more 
with our local schools to promote the program and to support the school’s educational mission at the same 
time. Stephanie has been meeting with the principals from the high school and middle school, and they have 
worked out a fun incentive idea to promote participation in our Summer Reading Program. Stay tuned for 
more details! We’ll also be working to connect with the elementary school and to make on-site visits as the 
school year winds down, as well as in the fall. We plan to continue strengthening this connection 
throughout the year with increased mutual support for programs and activities to benefit our community! 
 
Oregon Library Association Annual Conference  
Carrie and Marilyn were each able to attend a portion of OLA’s annual conference in Bend this past week. 
Marilyn enjoyed a project management workshop and networking with colleagues from around the state. A 
favorite highlight of the conference was the keynote address and question session by Sari Feldman, 
President of the American Library Association. Carrie also enjoyed the inspiring keynote address, as well as 
a number of sessions on active programming for young people, library directorship, services for Spanish-
speaking patrons, and much more. It was inspiring to share ideas and get new ideas and make new 
connections with colleagues for the year ahead! Next year’s conference will be in Salem and we are looking 
forward to all our staff being able to attend some portion of the trainings. 
 
Read to the Dogs 
We held another very successful Read to the Dogs program on April 23rd, with all available reading slots 
filled. We continue to receive a great deal of positive feedback on this program and we are thankful for 
these sweet therapy dogs (and their owners) sharing time with us here once a month! The next program is 
Saturday, May 28th from 2-3. We anticipate continuing the program during the summer months, as vacation 
schedules allow. 
 
Dia de los Niños/Dia de los Libros Program 
We are planning a program on Friday, April 29th in celebration of El Dia de los niños/Dia de los libros 
(Children’s Book Day). This is the 20th anniversary of the founding of this celebration of library books 
celebrating children of diverse cultures, languages and heritages. This is an important celebration of diverse 
books (our 2nd year of hosting a Dia program) and we’ll be having a lively bingo game, book display, and 
fun international foods for children to try as they learn about world cultures and traditions together. We will 
have help of our Teen Advisory Board members as well. 
 
Volunteer Thank Yous! 
Every April we make a point to express our thanks to our library volunteers during National Volunteer 
Week for all they do for the library and the community. This year we would like to recognize these 
wonderful volunteers for all their help: Pepper Teem, Stephanie Buhr, Pat Wallace, Maria Maldonado, 
Miranda Otte, Maddie Buhr, Gary Stein, Bridget Conklin, Kerry Sauvageau, Julia Savage, Ruby Porras, Bev 
Fleckenstein, Deanna Verboort, Keith Teem, Shirley Manley, Edger Bernal, Michael Otte,  Anna Holt, Mary 

LIBRARY 

Item #7

Page 7 of 59



 

Ellen Butsch, and Yelisa Porras. We also have a new crop of kind and giving volunteer applicants we will be 
bringing on board to the library soon. We are so grateful!  
 
Friends of the Library Book purchases and Annual Meeting 
The Friends of the Library will be generously donating $1300 to the library for the purchase of books and 
audio-visual materials for the collections! We will be using this wonderful donation to purchase new a 
number of new non-fiction books for children, as well as to purchase items for our adult large print, new 
fiction, and DVD and audiobook collection. We can’t thank the Friends enough for all they do to support 
the library and the community! The Friends annual meeting takes places on April 27th in the Community 
Room. We are so lucky to have an active and dedicated Friends group. 
 
Beverly Cleary Party 
Our party in honor of Oregon author Beverly Cleary’s 100th birthday was a big success! We had over 25 
attendees of all ages who enjoyed birthday cake, crown making, a giant birthday card, and a short 
documentary about Ms. Cleary. 
 
Upcoming Programs--Movies  
Our Movie Matinee programs continue to be successful, especially with more recent releases. Our last 3rd 
Friday Movie Matinee, “Alvin and the Chipmunks: Road Chip” attracted 27 attendees. We will be showing 
two movies in May--”Norm of the North” on Friday, May 20th at 3:30, and “Star Wars: The Force 
Awakens” on a special Saturday Movie Matinee on May 14th at noon.  
 
RFID Coming this Summer 
CCRLS libraries are moving forward with a big initiative to move to add RFID tags to all library materials 
later this summer. RFID is a combination of radio-frequency-based technology and microchip technology 
which will give libraries in CCRLS greater options in terms of automated materials handling, security, 
inventorying, and easier check-out and check-in. This project is being paid for and managed by CCRLS and 
is currently in the final planning stages. All libraries in CCRLS will need to add RFID tags to all circulating 
materials in order for the shared collections to continue to work properly across all 18 libraries. The labor 
and materials for this RFID conversion will be covered by CCRLS, though local staff may have the option 
to work extra hours to help in this tagging process. Though RFID chiefly benefits larger library systems with 
the capacity to automate processes, it will enable us to add security systems should we decide to do so in the 
future, and it will make it easier to install an self-check machine (which we plan to do in the next few 
months).  
 
Circulation Stats 
Items circulated in March 2016: 2575  ; Items circulated in February 2016: 2566 
Patron visits in March 2016: 1220 ; Patron visits in February 2016: 1042  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item #7

Page 8 of 59



 

Michael D. Healy 

Chief of Police 
mhealy@ci.mt-angel.or.us 
503-845-9294 
 
 
Voting Receiver Move: 
We recently moved the voting receiver from the roof of City Hall to the roof of the Edelweiss Building.  We 
are now experiencing better reception in some of the “dark” areas we had worked with in the past.   
 
Records Clerk Replacement: 
We have a young lady undergoing a background investigation in hopes of filling the part-time Records & 
Evidence Clerk vacancy caused by Lynn Jenks retirement in late May.  Hopefully we will be able to start her 
in the next few weeks. 
 
Police Officer Recruitment: 
We have finished the recruitment process for our last open police officer position.  Ms. Anela Javor will be 
starting work with us in the next few weeks.  She has undergone all of the required physical and 
psychological screening and has passed her background investigation.  Most recently, she has worked for 
Multnomah County Sheriff’s Office in the records section.  Since she is a recruit, she will be required to 
attend the 16 week basic police academy. 
 
Range Training: 
All sworn personnel (volunteer and paid) will attend a quarterly range qualification at the Stayton Police 
Department range on April 27th.  Officers will qualify with their duty weapon, off-duty weapon and the 
department’s long guns. 
 
Departmental Challenge Coins: 
The challenge coins that were designed for the department arrived.  These were made and purchased as a 
morale builder for the department to give out to officers and community members who make a special 
contribution to the department.  For those of you not familiar with challenge coins, it is a coin or medallion 
bearing an organization's insignia or emblem and typically notes the organization’s values and is carried with 
pride by the organization's members.  
 
I gave each officer a coin as a thank you for the extraordinary shift coverage they experienced in the last six 
months with the vacancies we had in patrol.  Being two positions short really creates a hard time for all of the 
other officers.   
 
Training: 
Nann Fleck attended a “Concerns of Police Survivor’s” (COPS) course in Salem.  The course better prepares 
the department in the case of an employee being killed in the line of duty. 
 
Chief and Sgt. Charpilloz attended a course titled “Left of Bang.”  It dealt with analyzing situations and people 
in order to help officers better anticipate and prepare for a potentially hazardous encounter. 
 
Chief attended the annual Chief’s Conference in Bend. 
 
 

POLICE 

Item #7

Page 9 of 59



 

Dan Bernt 
Public Works Superintendent 
dbernt@ci.mt-angel.or.us 
503-845-6260 
 
 

Water Department 

 Collected Arsenic and Nitrate samples from all wells.                       

 Collected SOC, VOC, and IOC samples from well #6.                         

 Did many special meter reads, stops, and starts.                                

 Did routine bi-monthly meter reading.                                                   

 Did six delinquency shut offs.                                                                      

 Collected 4 routine and 5 repeat water samples.                              

 Crew members did routine fire hydrant flushing.                                 

 Installed a new water service line to Fisher Park.                                 

 Assisted with repairs to the Mt. Angel Towers’ water meter.                      

 Monitored & inspected water service connection for the new Mt. Angel School District office.                                                                  

 Restarted well #5 so we can collect misc. water samples that we need to stay in compliance with the 
State regulations. 

 
Sewer Department                                                                          

 Monitored and inspected installation of a new replacement sanitary sewer lateral for a home on N. 
Cleveland Street. 

 The season of discharge of treated effluent from our treatment facilities to the Pudding River has ended. 
We will now hold through next October. The lagoon levels are not as low as last year, but we should be 
alright capacity wise. 

 Mowing and vegetation control continues at the WWTP.                   

 We monitored and inspected the sanitary sewer connection for the new Mt. Angel School District 
office. 

 
Parks Department                     

 Parks mowing is in full swing. We also did some spraying.                     

 Equipment checks were done at all parks.                                            

 Work has begun on the irrigation system upgrade at Humpert Park.                                                                                                                    

 Drinking fountains have been activated at the 3 large parks and portable toilets are available at each park 

also.                               

 We have already had several park reservations.                                 

 We did various needed maintenance tasks on our parks mowing equipment. 

Streets Department                                                                          

 The Street Sweeper was out twice in April.                                                 

 We did pothole patching on S. Main, N. Sheridan, W. College, and Railroad Avenue.                                                                                            

 Finished barricade repairs and repainting for this year.                         

 Roadside/right of way mowing continues.                                              

 We did basin cleaning and clearing as necessary. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS 

Item #7

Page 10 of 59



 

Other      

 We have done many utility locates with all the development and private utility's upgrades around our 
City.                                     

 We posted notice for the Planning Commission hearing at 555 N. Main St.  

Item #7

Page 11 of 59



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     1

Report dates: 3/31/2016-4/15/2016 Apr 25, 2016  12:24PM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

911 Supply

1063 911 Supply 38801 Forensics clean prep towelett 03/15/2016 13.00 01-02-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total 911 Supply: 13.00

ABC ROOFING CO, INC.

12980 ABC ROOFING CO, INC. 16443 City hall roof repairs 03/24/2016 2,000.00 01-01-62460  Building  Maintenance

12980 ABC ROOFING CO, INC. 16443 City hall roof repairs 03/24/2016 1,907.00 01-02-62460  Building Maintenance

12980 ABC ROOFING CO, INC. 16443 City hall roof repairs 03/24/2016 1,000.00 25-25-62805  Building Maintenance

12980 ABC ROOFING CO, INC. 16443 City hall roof repairs 03/24/2016 1,000.00 26-26-62805  Building Maintenance

          Total ABC ROOFING CO, INC.: 5,907.00

AIRGAS USA, INC

1225 AIRGAS USA, INC 9935421615 Cylinder rental fees/monthly(water & sewer) 03/31/2016 102.92 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

1225 AIRGAS USA, INC 9935421615 Cylinder rental fees/monthly(water & sewer) 03/31/2016 21.11 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

1225 AIRGAS USA, INC 9950155796 4 cylinders chlorine for WWTP(effluent treatment) 04/07/2016 2,227.32 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total AIRGAS USA, INC: 2,351.35

Aspen Wildlife Services, LLC

1545 Aspen Wildlife Services, LLC 41 Wildlife mgmt program/monthly 04/05/2016 375.00 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total Aspen Wildlife Services, LLC: 375.00

Baker & Taylor Books

1710 Baker & Taylor Books 4011555603 Books 03/24/2016 190.23 01-05-62461  New Books

          Total Baker & Taylor Books: 190.23

Bochsler Hardware

2090 Bochsler Hardware APRIL2016 Lightbulbs, trash bags, putty knife 03/31/2016 29.72 11-11-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

2090 Bochsler Hardware APRIL2016 Sprayer, water, shackels,chain, ext cord,rake, water fittings 03/31/2016 138.99 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

2090 Bochsler Hardware APRIL2016 Shovel, saw, car wash 03/31/2016 62.85 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

2090 Bochsler Hardware APRIL2016 Batteries 03/31/2016 12.99 01-02-62420  Supplies & Services

2090 Bochsler Hardware APRIL2016 Wax paper, ant traps, spray, paper towel holder/towels 03/31/2016 18.26 01-05-62420  Supplies & Services

Item #8

Page 12 of 59



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     2

Report dates: 3/31/2016-4/15/2016 Apr 25, 2016  12:24PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total Bochsler Hardware: 262.81

BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY

12947 BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY CL34816 Public works fuel by dept. 03/31/2016 87.31 01-06-62790  Vehicle Operation

12947 BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY CL34816 Public works fuel by dept. 03/31/2016 86.00 26-26-62790  Vehicle Operation

12947 BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY CL34816 Public works fuel by dept. 03/31/2016 121.64 25-25-62790  Vehicle Operation

12947 BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY CL34816 Public works fuel by dept. 03/31/2016 158.37 11-11-62790  Vehicle Operation

12947 BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY CL34816 Police Dept fuel 03/31/2016 598.99 01-02-62790  Vehicle Operation

12947 BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY CL34816 Police Dept fuel 03/31/2016 57.24 01-02-62790  Vehicle Operation

          Total BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY: 1,109.55

CASTER, CARRIE A

12849 CASTER, CARRIE A 2016APRIL DVD'S for collection 03/31/2016 56.95 01-05-62474  Audio Visuals and CD's

12849 CASTER, CARRIE A 2016APRIL books 03/31/2016 99.41 01-05-62461  New Books

12849 CASTER, CARRIE A 2016APRIL Supplies for collections(binders) 03/31/2016 7.99 01-05-62462  Maintenance, Books & Exp

12849 CASTER, CARRIE A APRIL2016 Food for CCRLS PYM library directors meeting 03/24/2016 70.17 01-05-62420  Supplies & Services

12849 CASTER, CARRIE A APRIL2016 books for collection 03/24/2016 91.93 01-05-62461  New Books

          Total CASTER, CARRIE A: 326.45

CATHOLIC COMMUNITY SERVICES

7750 CATHOLIC COMMUNITY SERVI 48 Public restrooms/monthly 04/05/2016 345.00 11-11-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total CATHOLIC COMMUNITY SERVICES: 345.00

CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT

12981 CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT 1367702 New large print book 03/24/2016 133.02 01-05-62461  New Books

          Total CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT: 133.02

CENTURY LINK

12583 CENTURY LINK 148 845-6260,2852,PWorks 04/05/2016 2.24 25-25-62430  Telephone

12583 CENTURY LINK 148 lines,9291,9292,6261 04/05/2016 8.69 01-01-62430  Telephone

12583 CENTURY LINK 148 845-6401/library long dist. 04/05/2016 .42 01-05-62430  Telephone

12583 CENTURY LINK 148 40009294,9848, Pdept long dist 04/05/2016 10.07 01-02-62430  Telephone

          Total CENTURY LINK: 21.42

Item #8

Page 13 of 59



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     3

Report dates: 3/31/2016-4/15/2016 Apr 25, 2016  12:24PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

City of Woodburn

2990 City of Woodburn 2016-0266 Setup cable to break room & help w/tablet access 04/05/2016 262.50 01-01-62470  Computer Supplies & Servi

2990 City of Woodburn 2016-0266 Setup new microsoft surface for PD/chief office 04/05/2016 300.00 01-02-62470  Computer Supplies & Servi

          Total City of Woodburn: 562.50

Complete Wireless Solutions

3200 Complete Wireless Solutions S88532 Battery 03/04/2016 417.52 01-02-62815  Expendable Supplies

          Total Complete Wireless Solutions: 417.52

Consolidated Supply Co.- Salem

3250 Consolidated Supply Co.- Salem S7705149.001 1 roll copper tubing for water service lines 03/30/2016 412.56 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

3250 Consolidated Supply Co.- Salem S7705149.001 3 sloan valvesfor public restrooms 03/30/2016 54.52 11-11-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total Consolidated Supply Co.- Salem: 467.08

DELTA GLOVES

12976 DELTA GLOVES 146600 Gloves 03/23/2016 192.80 01-02-62815  Expendable Supplies

          Total DELTA GLOVES: 192.80

ENVIROSHRED NW

12948 ENVIROSHRED NW 1 Shredding services/PD & CH 04/01/2016 18.20 01-01-62420  Supplies & Services

12948 ENVIROSHRED NW 1 Shredding services 04/01/2016 18.20 01-02-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total ENVIROSHRED NW: 36.40

FARMERS TOILET CO.

4610 FARMERS TOILET CO. 44 Portable toilets/Parks 04/05/2016 166.00 01-06-62760  Utilities

          Total FARMERS TOILET CO.: 166.00

GEM EQUIPMENT OF OREGON, INC.

4990 GEM EQUIPMENT OF OREGON,  15073 Fabricated & installed SS hopper screen in street sweeper 03/30/2016 1,737.00 11-11-62790  Vehicle Operation

          Total GEM EQUIPMENT OF OREGON, INC.: 1,737.00

GREG'S AUTOMOTIVE

5195 GREG'S AUTOMOTIVE 11506 Labor & test switch 03/15/2016 198.20 01-02-62550  Vehicle Repairs

Item #8

Page 14 of 59



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     4

Report dates: 3/31/2016-4/15/2016 Apr 25, 2016  12:24PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total GREG'S AUTOMOTIVE: 198.20

HEALY, MICHAEL

5477 HEALY, MICHAEL APRIL2016 Chief training & travel reimbursments/mileage 03/14/2016 172.26 01-02-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

5477 HEALY, MICHAEL APRIL2016 Chief training & travel reimbursments/meals 03/14/2016 68.29 01-02-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

          Total HEALY, MICHAEL: 240.55

IDEXX LABORATORIES

5880 IDEXX LABORATORIES 3000845841 Lab testing supplies for WWTP 03/28/2016 142.89 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total IDEXX LABORATORIES: 142.89

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL

6142 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 9829248/57 V belt for parks mower 03/04/2016 103.75 01-06-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

6142 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 9829248/57 V belts for streets mower 03/04/2016 172.36 11-11-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

6142 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 9829248/57 Key kit for WWTP tractor 03/04/2016 7.17 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL: 283.28

Laborers' Local 483

6510 Laborers' Local 483 39 PW union dues,monthly/emp.paid 04/10/2016 342.38 01-00-20635  Accrued Union Dues

          Total Laborers' Local 483: 342.38

M/D Control Systems, Inc.

6930 M/D Control Systems, Inc. 5383-5234 Reservoir telemetry system repairs 03/31/2016 5,330.15 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total M/D Control Systems, Inc.: 5,330.15

Marion County Treasurer

7050 Marion County Treasurer 1 Court assessments/monthly 04/01/2016 306.00 01-03-62520  Assessments

          Total Marion County Treasurer: 306.00

Mid-Willamette Council of Gov

7440 Mid-Willamette Council of Gov 1516296 Reg. planning services(Feb) 03/23/2016 231.00 01-04-62515  Planning Fees

7440 Mid-Willamette Council of Gov 1516296 Var 2016-01, SDR 2016-01(555 N. Main st) 03/23/2016 115.50 01-04-62515  Planning Fees

7440 Mid-Willamette Council of Gov 1516296 PAR 2016-01(1085 Academy) 03/23/2016 115.50 01-04-62515  Planning Fees

Item #8

Page 15 of 59



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     5

Report dates: 3/31/2016-4/15/2016 Apr 25, 2016  12:24PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total Mid-Willamette Council of Gov: 462.00

Moonlight Maintenance, Inc.

7590 Moonlight Maintenance, Inc. 137 City Hall cleaning 04/05/2016 218.00 01-01-62460  Building  Maintenance

7590 Moonlight Maintenance, Inc. 138 Police Dept. cleaning/monthly 04/05/2016 264.00 01-02-62460  Building Maintenance

7590 Moonlight Maintenance, Inc. 139 Library cleaning/monthly 04/10/2016 216.00 01-05-62460  Building Maintenance

          Total Moonlight Maintenance, Inc.: 698.00

Mt Angel Telephone Company

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 409 WWTP 2 lines+internet 04/05/2016 123.34 26-26-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 410 City Well 04/05/2016 59.23 25-25-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 411 PWShops 2 lines+internet/split 04/05/2016 93.60 25-25-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 411 PWShops 2 lines+internet/split 04/05/2016 23.40 11-11-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 412 City Hall Fax 04/05/2016 48.23 01-01-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 413 Library phone 04/05/2016 39.32 01-05-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 414 Pdept 911 line 04/10/2016 33.45 01-02-62530  Dispatch Services

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 415 City Hall, 2 lines 04/05/2016 108.01 01-01-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 416 Police Dept lines 04/05/2016 155.49 01-02-62430  Telephone

          Total Mt Angel Telephone Company: 684.07

NAPA Auto Parts

7910 NAPA Auto Parts APRIL2016 Air nozzle & adapter 03/25/2016 17.47 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

7910 NAPA Auto Parts APRIL2016 Silcone & wiring connectors 03/25/2016 16.61 26-26-62790  Vehicle Operation

7910 NAPA Auto Parts APRIL2016 Vehicle repair/#51 03/25/2016 47.15 01-02-62550  Vehicle Repairs

          Total NAPA Auto Parts: 81.23

NIEVES, JEN

12977 NIEVES, JEN APRIL2016 Refund park deposit 04/04/2016 25.00 01-06-62528  Park Reservation Return D

          Total NIEVES, JEN: 25.00

Northwest Natural Gas Co.

8210 Northwest Natural Gas Co. 87 City Hall bldg,split w/pdept 04/05/2016 74.06 01-01-62760  Utilities

8210 Northwest Natural Gas Co. 87 City Hall bldg,split w/pdept 04/05/2016 74.05 01-02-62760  Utilities

8210 Northwest Natural Gas Co. 88 Library building 04/10/2016 49.84 01-05-62760  Utilities

Item #8

Page 16 of 59



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     6

Report dates: 3/31/2016-4/15/2016 Apr 25, 2016  12:24PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total Northwest Natural Gas Co.: 197.95

One Call Concepts, Inc

8460 One Call Concepts, Inc 6030429 Utility locating notification fees/monthly 03/31/2016 75.24 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total One Call Concepts, Inc: 75.24

Oregon Department of Revenue

8610 Oregon Department of Revenue 1 State of OR court assessments 04/01/2016 914.00 01-03-62520  Assessments

          Total Oregon Department of Revenue: 914.00

Oregon Sewer & Drain

8800 Oregon Sewer & Drain 2020 Trace sanitary sewer lateral/310 Palmer 03/31/2016 195.00 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total Oregon Sewer & Drain: 195.00

PGE

9220 PGE 772 195 Main/decor lites 04/25/2016 21.50 11-11-62910  Street Lighting Contract

9220 PGE 777 905 W. Marquam/PW shops, split 04/25/2016 33.78 11-11-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 777 905 W. Marquam/PW shops, split 04/25/2016 67.57 25-25-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 777 905 W. Marquam/PW shops, split 04/25/2016 67.57 26-26-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 780 200 GarfieldGazeb/decor lites 04/25/2016 20.56 11-11-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 781 204 Humpert/Resevoir telemetry 04/25/2016 17.12 25-25-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 782 460 E. Marquam/Well #7 04/25/2016 1,455.45 25-25-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 783 290 E. Charles/Library bldg. 04/25/2016 350.18 01-05-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 784 12334 Mt.Angel-Gervais/WWTP 04/25/2016 1,786.30 26-26-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 785 615 May St/Fisher Park 04/25/2016 17.12 01-06-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 786 700 Spruce/Ebner Park 04/25/2016 29.34 01-06-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 788 440 Alder/Well #5 04/25/2016 52.47 25-25-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 789 105 Church/Blinking Xwalk @214 04/25/2016 18.41 11-11-62910  Street Lighting Contract

9220 PGE 790 Well #6 04/25/2016 853.19 25-25-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 791 10991 Saratoga/res. telemetry 04/25/2016 34.39 26-26-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 792 Street Lights Contract 04/25/2016 1,617.72 11-11-62910  Street Lighting Contract

9220 PGE 793 120 Main/Fountain area 04/25/2016 78.59 11-11-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 794 95 Gar./CH bldg,split w/pdept. 04/25/2016 240.87 01-01-62760  Utilities

9220 PGE 794 95 Gar./CH bldg,split w/pdept. 04/25/2016 240.86 01-02-62760  Utilities

          Total PGE: 7,002.99

Item #8

Page 17 of 59



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     7

Report dates: 3/31/2016-4/15/2016 Apr 25, 2016  12:24PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

Republic Services #456

1310 Republic Services #456 48 Garbage services/monthly 04/05/2016 92.20 25-25-62760  Utilities

          Total Republic Services #456: 92.20

RICOH USA, INC.

12717 RICOH USA, INC. 5041003728 Copy fees 03/10/2016 86.85 01-02-62470  Computer Supplies & Servi

12717 RICOH USA, INC. 5041455285 Copies and service fees/quarterly 04/04/2016 105.01 01-04-62420  Supplies & Services

12717 RICOH USA, INC. 5041455285 Copies and service fees/quarterly 04/04/2016 105.01 25-25-62420  Supplies & Services

12717 RICOH USA, INC. 5041455285 Copies and service fees/quarterly 04/04/2016 105.01 26-26-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total RICOH USA, INC.: 401.88

SILVERTON HOSPITAL

10650 SILVERTON HOSPITAL APRIL2016 Medical/new hire 02/29/2016 51.00 01-02-62572  Hiring Expense

          Total SILVERTON HOSPITAL: 51.00

SNELL, BILL

12978 SNELL, BILL APRIL2016 Equipment 03/30/2016 137.57 01-02-62798  Equipment

          Total SNELL, BILL: 137.57

SPEER HOYT, LLC

10795 SPEER HOYT, LLC 34826-29 Mt. Angel telephone franchise fee agreement 03/31/2016 1,251.20 01-01-62500  Attorney Fees

10795 SPEER HOYT, LLC 34826-29 Labor: MAPA 03/31/2016 813.30 01-02-62500  Attorney Fees

10795 SPEER HOYT, LLC 34826-29 Labor/LIUNA 03/31/2016 609.05 25-25-62500  Attorney Fees

10795 SPEER HOYT, LLC 34826-29 Labor/LIUNA 03/31/2016 609.05 26-26-62500  Attorney Fees

          Total SPEER HOYT, LLC: 3,282.60

Squad Room Emblems

10860 Squad Room Emblems APRIL2016 Badges patches for uniforms and jackets 01/19/2016 507.15 01-02-62575  Uniforms

          Total Squad Room Emblems: 507.15

STEARNS, MISTY

12979 STEARNS, MISTY APRIL2016 Refund park deposit 03/25/2016 25.00 01-06-62528  Park Reservation Return D

          Total STEARNS, MISTY: 25.00

Item #8

Page 18 of 59



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     8

Report dates: 3/31/2016-4/15/2016 Apr 25, 2016  12:24PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

US Bancorp Service Center

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Sedcor: Economic business forum/JH 03/25/2016 20.00 01-01-62420  Supplies & Services

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Amazon: Budget book supplies 03/25/2016 82.94 01-01-62510  City Council Expense

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Amazon: Cordless phone for WWTP 03/25/2016 46.45 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Office depot: Newsletter paper & paper towels 03/25/2016 138.81 01-01-62420  Supplies & Services

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Office depot:Garbage liners & paper towels 03/25/2016 45.66 01-02-62420  Supplies & Services

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Office depot: Paper towels 03/25/2016 14.85 01-05-62420  Supplies & Services

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Amazon: tables for use in the comm. room 03/25/2016 128.70 01-01-62510  City Council Expense

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Office depot: Stock copy paper 03/25/2016 51.98 01-01-62420  Supplies & Services

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Amazon: Canned air for cleaning 03/25/2016 5.99 01-01-62420  Supplies & Services

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Sunriver resort: Credit for OGFOA conf. cancellation 03/25/2016 209.00- 01-01-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 OACP: Registration for chief conference 03/25/2016 220.00 01-02-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Safariland: Drug tests 03/25/2016 76.50 01-02-62571  Investigations

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 JJ Keller: Credit memos 03/25/2016 39.70- 01-02-62420  Supplies & Services

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 JJ Keller: Code Book 03/25/2016 21.75 01-02-62420  Supplies & Services

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Amazon: DVD'S for collection 03/25/2016 215.32 01-05-62474  Audio Visuals and CD's

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 USPS: postage for returned books 03/25/2016 10.62 01-05-62440  Postage

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Barnes & Noble: periodicals for collection 03/25/2016 16.44 01-05-62475  Serials & Publications

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Barnes & Noble: Books for Adult colleciton 03/25/2016 46.60 01-05-62461  New Books

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Amazon & Angel Mt. Screen printers: children's books & programs 03/25/2016 298.09 01-05-62595  Childrens Program

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Oregon Library Assoc: OLA conference & membership 03/25/2016 185.00 01-05-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

11810 US Bancorp Service Center APRIL2016 Old stone coffee & Dollar tree: PYM meeting supplies/refreshments 03/25/2016 116.00 01-05-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total US Bancorp Service Center: 1,493.00

VOGUE

12927 VOGUE APRIL2016 Magazine subscription/1 yr 04/07/2016 12.00 01-05-62475  Serials & Publications

          Total VOGUE: 12.00

Waterlab Corporation

12150 Waterlab Corporation 42 Routine testing/monthly 04/05/2016 120.00 25-25-62755  Laboratory Testing

          Total Waterlab Corporation: 120.00

Westech Engineering, Inc.

12260 Westech Engineering, Inc. 21197 CUP 2015-02/SDR 2015-02(School District) 03/30/2016 819.00 01-04-62516  Engineering Fees

12260 Westech Engineering, Inc. 21197 PAR 2014-01 (175/215 Alder) 03/30/2016 352.50 01-01-62516  Engineering Fees

12260 Westech Engineering, Inc. 21197 Infrastructure Task force/Street imp. cost estimate 03/30/2016 138.00 26-26-62916  Consultant Services

12260 Westech Engineering, Inc. 21197 Infrastructure Task force/Street imp. cost estimate 03/30/2016 138.00 25-25-62916  Consultant Services

12260 Westech Engineering, Inc. 21197 Well #6 certification site visit 03/30/2016 134.00 25-25-62916  Consultant Services

Item #8

Page 19 of 59



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     9

Report dates: 3/31/2016-4/15/2016 Apr 25, 2016  12:24PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total Westech Engineering, Inc.: 1,581.50

Wilco Farmers

12310 Wilco Farmers APRIL2016 Irrigation supplies, pipe fittings,shovel,lawn seed,utility knife 03/31/2016 184.10 01-06-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total Wilco Farmers: 184.10

          Grand Totals:  39,681.06

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Item #8

Page 20 of 59



 
 

 
 

 

City of Mt. Angel 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

                           

CITY COUNCIL                             April 5, 2016         7:00 PM                                  
 

The Mt. Angel City Council met in a regular session in the Community Meeting Room, 290 E. Charles 

Street, Mt. Angel, Oregon.  

1. CALL TO ORDER: The regular session of the City Council was called to order at 7:08 p.m. by 
Mayor Otte. 

 
2. FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Otte led the salute to the flag.  
 
3. ROLL CALL: 

 
COUNCIL    STAFF  
Andrew Otte, Mayor   Eileen Stein, City Manager 
Kelly Grassman, Council President  Mike Healy, Police Chief 
Darren Beyer, Councilor                         Dan Bernt, Public Works Superintendent 
Karl Bischoff, Councilor    Chaunee Seifried, Finance Director 
Don Fleck, Councilor   Carrie Alexandria Caster, Library Director              

      Ray Eder, Councilor 
Kelly Grassman, Council President 

 

ABSENT 

Pete Wall, Councilor 

 

4.   PRESENTATIONS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS:    

The Mayor recognized the Americorp Volunteers and Senior Corps contribution to local communities.      

He signed a proclamation naming April 5, 2016 as Mayor and County Recognition Day for National 

Service.   

   

5.   APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS:   

None 

 

6.   REVIEW CORRESPONDENCE:   

A letter was sent to the Council by Bill Schaecher addressing the fees associated with renting the baseball 

fields.  He feels the cost associated with the field rental for a community organization, like Little League, is 

prohibitive.  He asked the Council to consider reducing the fee.  

 

Item #9a

Page 21 of 59



 
 

 
 

 

The Council discussed the request in light of the fact that Little League is a community service.  The 

Council is supportive of the community’s children being able to play baseball without worrying about 

being unable to afford to be on a team. 

 

City Manager Stein explained that the fee schedule states that the cost is $300 for a league per season.  She 

suggested that the Council may consider a youth league category and not specifically just Little League as 

there are other sports leagues for children.   

 

There was discussion among the Council and staff about considering a breakdown of park rental fees into 

a more detailed structure at a future meeting.  

 

At this time, the Council decided to grant a waiver of the fee to Little League for this season.  The regular 

deposit will be collected. 

 

Dennis Tapp wrote a letter asking the City to consider a crosswalk on E. College from Towers Lane to 

Humpert Lane, near the abbey.  While the Council recognized it as an issue, the proposed location was 

discussed as an unsafe place to cross the road with high speed traffic and low visibility.  The County line is 

also near that location and the County may have a say in the placement of any crosswalks in that vicinity.  

City Manager Stein was asked to follow up with Mr. Tapp. 

 

7.   REVIEW WRITTEN STAFF REPORTS: 

City Manager Stein asked the Council to review at the report on the Façade project.  She reported the 

progress that the City has made with the applicants.  It appears that some of the six applicants may 

withdraw after receiving feedback from the Design Review Board.   Other businesses have inquired about 

the grant now that they have heard of it.  She asked the Council if they would be willing to extend the 

process to cover some of the businesses that have inquired after the City received the initial applications.  

She suggested a tier one and tier two type of process with first priority going to the applicants who got 

their applications in by the January deadline.  The Council felt that was acceptable and may put them in 

good standing with the County for other grant opportunities. 

 

8.   REVIEW ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:  

City Manager Stein directed the attention of the Council to the two reports that were presented for 

accounts payable this month, as was previously requested by the Council.  Staff was pleased with the 

report and wanted to know if the Council preferred it.  There was a general consensus that the new report 

was easier to read and provided more meaningful information to the Councilors.   

 

Mayor Otte asked Superintendent Bernt if this was the year that a smoke test would need to be performed.  

Superintendent Bernt said they perform yearly tests and will schedule the smoke tests for the drier season. 

 

9.   CONSENT AGENDA:  

a. Approve City Council Regular Meeting Minutes for March 7, 2016 

Item #9a

Page 22 of 59



 
 

 
 

 

 
A clerical correction was pointed out that it was Councilor Grassman who abstained from the roll call vote 
on the collective bargaining agreement, not Mayor Otte on page 35 of 73. 
 

Councilor Bischoff moved to approve the Consent Agenda; Councilor Eder seconded. 
 

Beyer:  AYE 
Bischoff: AYE 

Eder:  AYE 

Fleck:  ABSENT 

Grassman:            AYE 

Otte:  AYE   

Wall:             ABSENT 

    

    The motion passed. 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Public Comment and Resolution Adopting a Master Fee Schedule 
Finance Director Seifried explained some of the additions to the fee schedule that were added since it was 
presented last month.  The ambulance fee had been calculated.  In the course of working on a project, the 
public records request fee was addressed, as some City forms reflect an amount previously set by 
resolution that was not indicated on the fee schedule.  Discussion ensued about the various fees.  
Councilor Grassman asked if the other resolutions needed to be repealed.   City Manager Stein explained 
that the purpose of the Fee Schedule is to gather all City fees into one document, it overrides the fees set 
in other resolutions.  The Council decided they would like to amend the public records request to $15.00 
per hour for administrative requests.  After some discussion, City Manager Stein suggested a $15.00 per 
hour for public records requests with a deposit of $30.00 for lengthy requests.  The police department has 
a $25.00 per hour fee for police records with a deposit of $50.00 for more lengthy requests.    
 

Councilor Grassman moved to approve a resolution updating fees for services provided by the City of 
Mt. Angel, as amended.   Councilor Beyer seconded the motion. 

Beyer:  AYE     Otte:         AYE 
Bischoff: AYE     Grassman:       AYE 
Eder:  AYE     Wall:            ABSENT 
Fleck:  ABSENT 
 
The motion passed. 
 
b. Appointment to Planning Commission 

Councilor Grassman asked about the interview process for filling the Planning Commission vacancies as 
discussed during the last meeting.  It was her understanding that the proposed interviews did not take 
place.  City Manager Stein explained that there will be another seat opening in July, so they now have two 
openings to fill.  So with two applicants and two vacancies coming up, staff suggested filling both 
vacancies now.   After some discussion about the staff recommendation, City Manager Stein suggested 
that the current vacancy be filled for the upcoming Planning Commission meeting.  The current vacancy 
will expire this term as well and the applicant would need to be reappointed, so the June appointments for 
both positions will be addressed at a later date. 
 

Item #9a

Page 23 of 59



 
 

 
 

 

Councilor Grassman moved to appoint David Sylvia to the Planning Commission for the remainder of 
a two (2) year term ending on June 30, 2016; Councilor Beyer seconded. 

 
Beyer:  AYE     Otte:         AYE 
Bischoff: AYE     Grassman:       AYE 
Eder:  AYE     Wall:            ABSENT 
Fleck:  ABSENT 
 
The motion passed. 

 
11. NEW BUSINESS: 

a. Mt. Angel Infrastructure Task Force Report and Recommendations 

There was some discussion about whether to consider moving this discussion to another meeting as the 

Council members on the Infrastructure Task Force were not able to attend the regular Council meeting.  

However, two of the citizen members were in attendance at the meeting.  Mayor Otte thanked Al Fiedler 

and the other citizens for their service on the task force.  City Manager Stein discussed aspects of the 

report that were presented in the packet. 

 

The Mayor asked Al Fiedler, who chaired the committee, to comment on what he thought was the most 

significant element to come out of this committee.  Mr. Fiedler said that the committee spent a lot of time 

trying to understand the current state of the city and the needs that exist to keep the water running and the 

sewer systems working.  He said they found that from 1999 there has only been about a half a percent 

increase per year in water and sewer rates, which is not enough to maintain the system appropriately.  The 

committee felt that the City needs to frontload the cost, about a $12 increase per household, to help repair 

the systems and bring them up to be fully functional and to sustain growth.  While they recognized this 

may be a significant jump, it will help avoid more extreme cost increases in the future if the system were to 

degrade further. 

 

The Council discussed the proposed rates and information presented in the report.  Councilor Grassman 

asked that a copy of the report be sent to the Budget Committee for their consideration during the budget 

process. 

 

Steve Ward, City Engineer, gave an explanation of the condition of the water system, sewer system, and 

the city streets to the Council.  He explained that other cities are also having to address the problem of 

aging infrastructure and some of the ideas that other cities are using to manage the situation.  He said he 

was very excited about the task force and their desire to set up the City for addressing the needs of the 

future, not all cities are being so thorough or proactive in their approach to significant infrastructure 

issues.  He thought the Committee did an excellent job and was pleased to be a part of it. 

 

Councilor Fleck arrived at the regular Council meeting at 8:12 p.m.  

 

Item #9a

Page 24 of 59



 
 

 
 

 

Councilor Fleck said that he realizes that fee increases are a tough pill to swallow, but as the Committee 

assessed what the condition of the infrastructure really were, they all realized that things need to change.  

He feels the recommendations are sound and will put the City in a good position to address these 

problems. 

 

Councilor Grassman asked about some of the scenarios that were presented.  City Manager Stein 

explained some of the reasoning behind the suggested scenarios and how that would also get money 

flowing through the various funds, so that a broader range of projects could be addressed.   She explained 

that this is a starting place, but in 2018 it will probably need to be evaluated again and perhaps another rate 

increase.   City Engineer Ward, explained that the three year evaluation model seems to be the most 

effective model to use as it is more representative of what is realistically occurring.  In the past, long range 

plans had been made, 10-20 year plans, but often over that period of time, the plans would end up not 

being carried out or a significant change would occur that had not been foreseen, which would make the 

plan obsolete. 

 

City Manager Stein also pointed out the increases in the various fund balances due to the proposed fee 

structure.  She said staff could also investigate how those funds might also be impacted by system 

development charges (SDCs), which would further enhance the City’s ability to utilize those funds for 

significant improvement projects.   

 

Councilor Bischoff asked what the Council action should be on this, at this point.  City Manager Stein 

answered that all of the suggestions given would be presented as decision packages as part of the budget 

process. 

 

Mr. Ward asked the Council to remember that these are projections.  Some people when faced with a 

higher bill, will start conserving water and that would have an impact on the fees collected.  The rate of 

conservation is an unknown and so it would be extremely difficult to give an accurate estimate of the 

impact it might have. 

 

Councilor Eder asked if the public will be made aware of what these rate increases will mean.  City 

Manager Stein said that it would incumbent on the City to let the public know.   Staff will work on ways to 

inform the public and enlist the media to help get the word out.  There will also be a public comment 

period on the budget, so citizens would be invited to come ask questions or convey their concerns. 

 

Further discussion took place about the rest of the report.    

 

Staff is looking at a jurisdictional transfer of E. Marquam Street for the property the County owns within 

the City.  The current arrangement is making needed infrastructure repairs difficult and as it is mainly the 

street right-of-way, Superintendent Bernt is hoping that they will consider it a relief to not have the 

responsibility for that land anymore.   

 

Item #9a

Page 25 of 59



 
 

 
 

 

b. Discussion of Future Agenda Items – See Council Agenda Calendar  

City Manager Stein reviewed the upcoming meeting schedule.  Primarily, this month will be dedicated to 
budget preparation.    
 
12. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 
No additional report other than the topics discussed throughout the meeting.   
 
13. COUNCILOR/COMMITTEE REPORTS:  
Councilor Eder asked if the Council could be heard without microphones tonight.  The audience 
confirmed they could hear the discussion just fine.  The audio recording is sufficiently picking up the 
discussion without the microphones.  The Council would like to discontinue use of the old microphones. 
 
14. MAYOR’S REPORT: 
Mayor Otte wanted to remind people to drive safely through the City as youth sports are in full swing. 

The Mayor said he is planning to attend the Mayor’s conference in July. 

 

City Manager Stein reminded the Council that Statements of Economic interest were due to the State 

soon. 

 

15. ADJOURNMENT: 

Mayor Otte adjourned the meeting at 8:43 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by:  ____________________ 

     Justin Hogue, Assistant to the City Manager  

 

 

Attested by:   ____________________ 

     Andrew Otte, Mayor 

Item #9a

Page 26 of 59



    

CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    May 2, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution   Motion   Information   

Date Prepared:  April 25, 2016 Department: Administration  

SUBJECT:  New outlet and off-premises liquor 
license request for Touch of Bavaria 

Contact Person for this Item:  Justin Hogue, 
Assistant to the City Manager, jhogue@ci.mt-
angel.or.us, (503) 845-9291 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:    
Staffs recommends approval to the Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) for a new outlet and off-premises 
liquor license for Touch of Bavaria. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
An application was submitted with the OLCC for a new outlet and off-premises liquor license for Touch of Bavaria 
located at 110 Sheridan Street in the Weissenfiels Blacksmith Shop. As indicated in the application, Touch of 
Bavaria intends to sell wine tastings during Oktoberfest. The tasting area will be located in the retail store near the 
checkout stand. No alcoholic beverages are permitted to leave the store.  
 
 The Police Department reviewed the application and there were no adverse findings. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to approve the liquor license application for Touch of Bavaria.”  
 
ATTACHMENT A: Liquor license application for Touch of Bavaria 
 

Item #9b

Page 27 of 59



Item #9b Attachment A

Page 28 of 59



Item #9b Attachment A

Page 29 of 59



Item #9b Attachment A

Page 30 of 59



Item #9b Attachment A

Page 31 of 59



    

CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    May 2, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution   Motion    Information   

Date Prepared:  April 26, 2016 Department:  Administration  

SUBJECT:  Interim City Manager and 
Recruitment Process for a New City Manager  

Contact Person for this Item:  Eileen Stein, City 
Manager, estein@ci-mt-angel.or.us, 503-845-
9291 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:    
1) Approve the appointment of an Interim City Manager. 
2) Approve an agreement with the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments to conduct a 

recruitment process to appoint a new City Manager for Mt. Angel 
3) Approve the selection timeline, job ad, brochure, and position profile.   
 
BACKGROUND:   
In follow up to my resignation as City Manager, the Mayor has recommended the appointment of Chief 
of Police Mike Healy as Interim City Manager while a recruitment process is conducted for a new City 
Manager.   
 
The Mayor also recommends the appointment of the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments 
(MWVCOG) to conduct the recruitment process for a new City Manager.  MWVCOG has conducted 
recruitments for City Administrator for Mt. Angel previously.  Incoming MWVCOG Executive 
Director, Jennie Messmer, has conducted numerous city manager recruitment processes, including for 
Mt. Angel in 2013 while she was Interim City Administrator for Mt. Angel in 2013.    
 
The scope of services for the recruitment process includes the activities listed in the attached proposal 
for services.  The proposal also contains an Agreement for Services.  Compensation for services will be 
$5,500.  The proposed timeline for the process identifies the selection of a new City Manager by August 
or September of 2016. Attached are the agreement, timeline, draft recruitment ad, brochure and position 
profile, for Council review and approval.   
  
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 

1) I move to approve the appointment of Chief of Police Mike Healy to the position of Interim City 
Manager for the period of May 20, 2016 until the first day of employment of the new City 
Manager. 

Item #11a

Page 32 of 59



    

 
2) I move to approve an agreement with the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Government to 

conduct a recruitment process for the selection of a new Mt. Angel City Manager. 
 

3) I move to approve the recruitment timeline, recruitment ad, brochure, and position profile for 
Mt. Angel City Manager.   

 
ATTACHMENTS:   A – Proposal and Agreement for Services 
   B – Recruitment Timeline 
   C – Recruitment Ad 
   D – Brochure 
   E – Position Profile  
 
  

Item #11a

Page 33 of 59



 
100 HIGH STREET S.E., Suite 200  |  SALEM, OREGON 97301  |  www.mwvcog.org 

T: 503.588.6177  |  F: 503-588-6094  |  E: mwvcog@mwvcog.org 

An equal opportunity lender, provider, and employer 
 

 

 Serving member governments in Marion, Polk, and Yamhill Counties    

April 20, 2016 
 

 
 
 
Mr. Andrew Otte  
Mayor 
City of Mt. Angel  
P.O. Box 960 
Mt. Angel, OR  97362 
    
Dear Mayor Otte; 
 
The Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments (hereinafter referred to as “COG”) would 
be pleased to discuss with you and the City Council the possibility of facilitating the recruitment 
process for a City Manager for the City of Mt. Angel. 
 
The scope of services for the recruitment process may, at the discretion of the Council, include 
any or all of the following activities: 
 

 Develop a recruitment timeline based on the Council’s decisions regarding placement 
of advertisements and the associated deadlines; the process that the Council determines is 
appropriate, Council availability, etc.   

 Meet with the City Council to draft a position profile.  The profile is a key component of 
a successful recruitment and includes the desired knowledge, skills, training and 
experiences that the City is looking for in a City Manager.  This profile will form the 
basis for the screening of applications, interview questions and candidate evaluation.  
Since the City recently recruited a City Administrator in 2013, we will likely be able to 
just review the previous profile and make sure it is still accurate. 

 Draft and place the position advertisements.   
 Receive applications and send acknowledgement letters to all applicants.   
 Screen applications down to those which most closely fit the position profile 
 Respond to inquiries from candidates during the recruitment process 
 Perform background/reference checks on finalist(s) chosen by the Council.  The base 

fee includes up to five (5) backgrounds at no additional charge.  Additional 
background/reference checks will be billed to the City at $400 per additional background.   

  

Item #11a Attachment A

Page 34 of 59



 Work with the Council in designing the interview process and the development of 
interview questions. 

 Facilitate the interview process. 
 Send out regret letters to unsuccessful candidates at appropriate times during the 

recruitment process. 
 

Items not included in the fee charged by the COG include actual advertising costs and travel for 
candidates and related expenses of candidates for participating in interview processes or the costs 
of the interview process such as meals and facilities.  The COG does not charge for COG staff 
travel costs.  The City would be responsible to have its legal counsel prepare or review any 
proposed employment contract with the person being hired as City Manager.  The COG would 
assist in negotiating a contract, if requested by the City, as part of the inclusive fee.   
 
Based on the services outlined above, the total cost of this project is $5,500.  The City of Mt. 
Angel will pay one-half of the project cost upon acceptance of this proposal and the remainder 
upon project completion.  Should the City significantly broaden the scope of services, the COG 
reserves the right to renegotiate the cost of the project.   
 
The staff of the Mid-Willamette Valley COG is prepared to commence this project immediately 
upon acceptance of this proposal by the City of Mt. Angel.     
 
Please feel free to call if you have any questions.  Let me know if you would like me to attend an 
upcoming council meeting. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jennie Messmer 
Deputy Director 
Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments 
 
 

  

Item #11a Attachment A

Page 35 of 59



ATTACHMENT  
 
 

SERVICES AGREEMENT MEMORANDUM 
 

 
Upon the request of the City of Mt. Angel, the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments 
agrees to perform the services outlined in the attached contract proposal.  The cost of these 
services to the City is $5,500. 
 
PROJECT IDENTIFICATION:   MT. ANGEL CITY MANAGER RECRUITMENT 
 
BILLING SCHEDULE:  The City will pay one-half of the project cost upon acceptance of this 
proposal and the remainder upon project completion.  Should the City significantly broaden the 
scope of services, the COG reserves the right to renegotiate the cost of the project. 
 
If you wish Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments to proceed with this project, please 
have an authorized official acknowledge acceptance of this proposal by signing and returning 
this services agreement memorandum to the COG. 
 
MID-WILLAMETTE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
       Nancy Boyer, Executive Director 
 
 
Accepted, this ___________ day of _______________, 2016 
 
CITY OF MT. ANGEL 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________ 

Andrew Otte, Mayor 
 

 

Item #11a Attachment A

Page 36 of 59



City of Mt. Angel 

Proposed City Manager Recruitment Timeline  

 

1. Review draft position profile  and advertisement materials 5/2/16 

2. Profile, ad and timeline finalized  5/2/16 

3. Advertisements placed  5/3/16 - 5/4/16 

4. Applications received, confirmations sent  5/5/16 - 6/3/16 

5. Deadline to receive applications  6/3/16 

6. Review applications  6/6/16 - 6/10/16 

7. Meet with Council to review applicants  Week of 6/13/16 - 6/17/16 

8. Telephone interviews if desired  Week of 6/20/16 - 6/24/16 

9. Select candidates to be interviewed & set interview dates Week of 6/13/2016 or 

  Week of 6/27/2016 

10. Letters sent to candidates no longer in running  Week of 6/13/2016 and/or 

  Week of 6/27/2016 

11. Set up interviews with top candidates  TBD 

12. Background checks/reference interviews on finalists  TBD 

13. Finalize interview details and questions   Week of interviews - June/July 

14. Interviews and selection of top candidate/s  TBD - June/July 

15. Negotiations with top candidate  Week after interviews 

16. Notification to other candidate/s  After top candidate accepts  

17. Tentative start date  August 1 - September 1 

 

Item #11a Attachment B

Page 37 of 59



2016 Draft Advertisement - Mt. Angel City Manager 
 

Mt. Angel – City Manager 

The City of Mt. Angel, located approximately 19 miles from Salem and 22 miles from the 
Portland Metro Area, is recruiting for the position of City Manager.  Salary range: $??,000 - 
$??,000 DOQ plus excellent benefits. Population: 3,400.  Staff of 19 FTE. Current annual budget 
of approximately $7.64 million.  This city is the home of the 4 day Mt. Angel Oktoberfest, which 
attracts approximately 300,000 visitors each year.  The appointed City Manager reports to the 
Mayor and six member City Council and oversees a full service city providing Police, Public 
Works/Utilities, Parks, Library, Planning, and Administrative Services.  The City is looking for 
its next great leader to bring integrity, strong communication skills, leadership and an open, 
friendly and professional communication style to Mt. Angel.  For position profile, minimum 
qualifications, additional information and veterans preference form, please go to www.ci.mt-
angel.or.us. Please submit resume, cover letter, 5 professional references, and veterans 
preference documentation (if applicable) by __________, 2016 to jmessmer@mwvcog.org with 
Mt. Angel City Manager in the subject line. 

 

Advertising Options: 

League of Oregon Cities - $20 

MWVCOG - free 

Washington League of Cities - free 

ICMA - cost between $700 and $1000 

Local Paper - TBD 

Employment Department - free 

California League of Cities - TBD 

Idaho League of Cities - TBD 

Other? 

Item #11a Attachment C

Page 38 of 59

http://www.ci.mt-angel.or.us/
http://www.ci.mt-angel.or.us/
mailto:jmessmer@mwvcog.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLACE PHOTO HERE, 
OTHERWISE DELETE BOX 

 

 

CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

About Mt. Angel 

 
Mt. Angel has a population of 
approximately 3,400 and is located in 
the heart of the Willamette Valley, 
approximately 20 miles from Salem, the 
state capital, and about 22 miles from 
the Portland metropolitan area.  The city 
is the home of the Mt. Angel 
Oktoberfest, the largest folk festival in 
the northwest which attracts approxi-
mately 300,000 visitors each year.  
Located adjacent to the city limits is the 
Mt. Angel Abbey and Seminary.  The 
world renowned Abbey Library was 
designed by Finnish architect Alvar 
Aalto.  Also located in Mt. Angel is the 
Benedictine Sisters’ Queen of Angels 
Monastery.  Mt. Angel has its own 
Glockenspiel located in City Center.  
The area surrounding Mt. Angel is rich 
agricultural land with beautiful farms of 
all types. 
 

Mt. Angel City Manager Recruitment 
c/o Mid Willamette Valley Council of Governments 
Attn: Jennie Messmer 
100 High St. SE, Ste. 200 
Salem, OR  97301 
 
Additional Information: www.mtangelor.org 
 
E: jmessmer@mwvcog.org 
P: 503-540-1605 
 

City of Mt. Angel 
 
 
City Manager Recruitment 

 

 
 

 

Compensation 

The compensation and benefit package will 
be based upon the successful candidate’s 
qualifications.  The salary range for the 
position is $??,000 - $??,000 per year.  
Additional compensation will include: 
 Oregon PERS retirement system-fully 

paid by the city 
 Health, dental and vision plans offered 

by the city for the employee and 
dependents 

 Vacation Leave 
 Administrative Leave - 80 hours per 

year 
 Holidays-12 days per year  
 Sick Leave-8 hours per month 
 
 

Item #11a Attachment D

Page 39 of 59

http://www.mtangelor.org/
mailto:jmessmer@mwvcog.org


 

The Position 
 City Manager 

 
 

 
The Mt. Angel City Manager is 
responsible for the general supervision 
of all city operations and ensures that 
the policies of the City Council are 
carried out by city staff.   
 
The Manager serves as the city’s budget 
officer and also holds the title of City 
Recorder.   
 
The administrator supervises all 
department heads of the city which is a 
full service operation with the exception 
of fire and rescue services which are 
provided by an independent fire district.   
 
There are two bargaining units and 19 
FTE in the City of Mt. Angel. For 
additional information go to 
www.ci.mt-angel.or.us 
  
 
 

• Administration 
 
• Finance 
 
• Police 
 
• Public Works/Utilities 
 
• Library 

 
 
 

 

City Services 

 
 

 
 
 

 

PLACE PHOTO HERE, 
OTHERWISE DELETE BOX 

 

The Application Process  

The successful candidate will have a 
bachelor’s degree in public administration 
or a closely related field with five years 
experience as a city administrator/ 
manager, assistant city manager or a 
department head with significant 
management responsibilities.  A master’s 
degree is preferred as is certification as an 
ICMA credentialed City Manager.  
Demonstrated successful work experience 
may substitute for some education or 
training. For questions, contact Jennie 
Messmer at 503-540-1605. 
 
Please submit a cover letter, resume, 
veterans preference documentation and 
five work related references with Mt. Angel 
City Manager in the subject line to: 
  

jmessmer@mwvcog.org 
 

Closing date is _______, 2016 
 

The City of Mt. Angel is an equal opportunity 

employer and provider. 

 
 
 
 

 

The Ideal Candidate 
 The ideal candidate for our City Manager 
will bring strong generalist experience 
with grants, economic development, 
planning, public works, human resources 
and municipal finance.  They need:  

 A high level of integrity. 
 Refined interpersonal skills and a 

strong sense of humor  
 The style of treating people of all 

backgrounds with dignity and 
respect. 

 A strong work ethic and the 
ability to lead by example. 

 An ability to work effectively with 
the City Council, staff, the 
business community and other 
units of government. 

 Strong leadership skills to 
promote the teamwork necessary 
to accomplish the City Council’s 
goals. 

 An open, friendly and professional 
communication style with the 
ability to relate to the community 
as a whole. 

 A sincere interest in participating 
in community organizations and 
events. 

 

Item #11a Attachment D

Page 40 of 59

http://www.ci.mt-angel.or.us/
mailto:jmessmer@mwvcog.org


 
CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

DRAFT CITY MANAGER PROFILE 
May 2, 2016 

 
 
(This profile is used for preparing job announcements, screening resumes, city council review of 
applicants, background checks and candidate interviews. It constitutes the standards, criteria 
and policy directives that will be used in hiring the City Manager.)  
 
 
EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE:  
 
 
Bachelor’s degree in public administration or a closely related field. Master’s degree preferred as 
is certification as an ICMA credentialed City Manager. Minimum of five years progressively 
responsible experience as a city manager, assistant city manager or a department head with 
significant management responsibility. Demonstrated successful work experience may substitute 
for some education or training.  
 
 
SKILLS AND SPECIFIC EXPERIENCE:  
 
 
1. ADMINISTRATION: Knowledge of the principles and practices of municipal government 
and the role of a city manager. Excellent communication skills with the ability to assist in 
achieving group consensus. Goal oriented with the ability to delegate responsibility but require 
accountability from staff in achieving city goals and completing projects. Ability to make hard 
decisions in a decisive but cooperative manner. Manages time well and is able to handle multiple 
projects and issues concurrently. Able to take a global view of issues facing the city and develop 
innovative solutions to problems. Takes a long range approach to city finances to improve 
financial stability.  
 
 
2. BUDGET/FINANCE: Knowledge of all aspects of municipal finance including budgets, 
financing and utility operations. Ability to express council goals, priorities and department needs 
in budget proposals while being sensitive to the public’s concerns about taxes and fees. Ability to 
manage city finances effectively to maximize limited resources. Demonstrated previous 
accomplishments in obtaining and administering grants.  
 
 
3. HUMAN RESOURCES: Thorough knowledge of labor law with experience in labor 
negotiations and contract administration. Ability to develop and train/assist staff in reaching 
professional goals. Ability to delegate assignments to staff and hold them accountable for their 
performance; and effectively use performance evaluations to recognize and praise good 
performance while providing constructive suggestions for improvement.  

Item #11a Attachment E

Page 41 of 59



 
4. COMMUNITY RELATIONS: Participates in community activities such as service clubs and 
special events. Accessible to citizens in dealing with municipal problems and issues. Able to 
effectively articulate the city’s position to the public on issues in a calm and positive manner. 
Excellent listening skills. Able to work effectively with the media. Must to work effectively with 
both community supporters and critics. Seeks innovative ways to obtain community input and 
keeps the public informed on matters of city-wide concern. Able to project a positive image of 
the city to the community and other units of government. The City Council places a high value 
on daily accessibility to the public and excellent communication skills with the public.  
 
 
5. COUNCIL RELATIONS: Provides open and straightforward communication and relations 
with the entire city council. Keeps the council informed at all times on issues and problems as 
they arise. Is well prepared for meetings and is able to present clear and concise written and oral 
reports. Provides professional advice and assistance to the council in the decision making 
process. Accepts and implements Council policy decisions regardless of his or her own opinion. 
Places a high priority on council requests for information and shares information equally with all 
councilors.  
 
 
6. INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Actively develops and maintains effective 
relations with other local, regional and state governments. Represents the city by serving on 
intergovernmental committees and programs of the League of Oregon Cities and other statewide 
or regional organizations. Develops working relationships with political representatives at the 
county, state and federal government level. Keeps the Council informed of legislative issues that 
may affect the city’s ability to provide services in order to enable them to effectively articulate 
the city’s position to other elected officials.  
 
 
7. OTHER KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITY: A generalist with a broad background and 
understanding of land-use planning, economic development, public works operations, 
infrastructure, public safety and human resources. Relevant experience involving public works 
and infrastructure issues including planning, financing, grant writing and project management. 
 
 
8. PERSONAL QUALITIES: Honest, straightforward with a high level of integrity. Integrates 
his or herself into the community as an active participant in community events. Demonstrates 
strong leadership qualities without being overbearing. Treats people of all backgrounds with 
respect and dignity. Strong sense of humor.  
 

Item #11a Attachment E

Page 42 of 59



CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    May 2, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution   Motion  Information   

Date Prepared:  April 26, 2016 Dept.:  Administration 

SUBJECT:  Check Signer Resolution 
Contact Person for this Item:  Chaunee Seifried, 
Finance Director, cseifried@ci.mt-angel.or.us, 
(503) 845-9291 

 
RECOMMENDATION:    
Approve the attached resolution designating check signers to reflect Interim City Manager, Chief of Police, 
Mike Healy, as staff check signer. 
  
BACKGROUND:   
The City requires two signatures on all checks written on the City account and on payroll.  The majority of the 
time, the City Manager is one of the signatures and an elected official can provide the other.   
 
This item is to update the City staff check signer from departing City Manager Eileen Stein to be Interim City 
Manager, Chief of Police, Mike Healy.  There are no changes proposed to the Council check signers. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to approve the attached resolution designating authorized check signers within the Council body and 
City staff effective May 21, 2016.” 
 
ATTACHMENT A: Proposed check signers resolution  

Item #11b

Page 43 of 59

mailto:cseifried@ci.mt-angel.or.us


CITY OF MT. ANGEL 
RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

 
A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED CHECK SIGNERS WITHIN THE 
COUNCIL BODY AND CITY STAFF EFFECTIVE MAY 21, 2016. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mt. Angel requires two signatures for Accounts Payable and Payroll 
Checks; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Finance Director is responsible for accounts payable and payroll, but has no 
authority to sign checks for either; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is recommended to have two members of staff and three members of council as 
authorized check signers for the City of Mt. Angel; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mt. Angel: 
 
1. That City Councilors Ray Eder, Kelly Grassman, and Pete Wall are the authorized Council 

members to sign Accounts Payable and Payroll checks. 
2. Interim City Manager Michael D. Healy is authorized as staff member to sign Accounts 

Payable and Payroll checks. 
3. This resolution shall be effective May 21, 2016. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council this 2nd of May, 2016, by the following vote: 
   

AYES:  NAYS:     
 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR this _____ of May, 2016. 
 
 
 
     _______________________________________ 
     Andrew Otte, Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:   _______________________________________ 
     Eileen Stein, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Filed by the City Recorder this _____ day of May, 2016. 

Item #11b Attachment A

Page 44 of 59



    

CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:   May 2, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution   Motion   Information    

Date Prepared:  April 27, 2016 Department: Police 

SUBJECT: Recreation Vehicle Parking 

Exemption  
 

Contact Person for this Item:  Mike Healy, 
Chief of Police, mhealy@ci.mt-angel.or.us, 
(503) 845-9294; or Justin Hogue, Assistant to 
the City Manager, jhogue@ci.mt-angel.or.us. 
(503) 845-9291 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve a resolution creating a temporary exemption of the Mt. Angel 
Municipal Code 70.56 for the 100 block of N. Cleveland St. which becomes effective upon passage and 
remains in effect through May 4, 2016. 
 
BACKGROUND:    
On April 11, 2016, Mr. Joseph Baldwin of 310 College Street submitted a written request for a temporary 
exemption to the R.V. parking ordinance in order to facilitate his transition from a traditional home to full-
time recreational vehicle living.  The time period he requested was from April 15th through May 4th of 
2016.  He is requesting to park a 34 foot class “A” motorhome on N. Cleveland St.  His request 
additionally states that no one would be living in the motorhome during the period of the exemption.  
(Please refer to the attached request) 
 
The May 2nd Council meeting is the first meeting available for the Council to consider his request. It 
should be noted that the motorhome has been parked in the 100 block of Cleveland since, approximately, 
April 15th.   
 
The M.A.M.C. allows the Council to grant an exemption to the R.V. parking ordinance by through a 
resolution.   A resolution is attached that would grant the requested exemption should the Council desire 
to so do. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: “I move to approve: A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A TEMPORARY 
EXEMPTION TO THE RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARKING PROHIBITION CONTAINED IN MT. 
ANGEL MUNICIPAL CODE 70.56 FOR THE 100 BLOCK OF NORTH CLEVELAND ST. 
EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE THROUGH MAY 4, 2016.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:   A – E-Mail to City Manager, dated April 11, 2016 
            B – Resolution   

 

Item #11c

Page 45 of 59

mailto:@ci.mt-angel.or.us


Item #11c Attachment A

Page 46 of 59



CITY OF MT. ANGEL 
RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A TEMPORARY EXEMPTION TO THE RECREATIONAL 
VEHICLE PARKING PROHIBITION CONTAINED IN MT. ANGEL MUNICIPAL CODE 
70.56 FOR THE 100 BLOCK OF NORTH CLEVELAND ST. EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE 
THROUGH MAY 4, 2016.  
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council wishes to promote public safety and neighborhood aesthetic standards, 

and; 
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council having reviewed Mr. Baldwin’s request for a temporary exemption, 

believe that granting the temporary exemption will not create a threat to public safety or 
neighborhood aesthetics, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to assist two long-term residents of Mt. Angel in their transition 

from traditional home living to full-time recreational vehicle living.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council for the City of Mt. Angel that: 
 
Section 1. A limited time exemption to the recreational vehicle parking ordinance be granted to Mr. 

Joseph Baldwin for the 100 block of North Cleveland St. for one thirty-four Class A 
motorhome beginning upon the approval of this resolution and remaining in effect 
through May 4, 2016.   

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council this 2nd day of May, 2016, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:     NAYS:     

 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR this 2nd day of May, 2016. 
 
 
 
     ___________________________________ 
     Andrew Otte, Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:   ___________________________________ 
     Eileen Stein, City Manager 

Item #11c Attachment B

Page 47 of 59



    

CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    May 2, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution   Motion    Information   

Date Prepared:  April 27, 2016 Department:  Administration  

SUBJECT:  Mt. Angel Telephone Company 
Franchise Agreement 

Contact Person for this Item:  Eileen Stein, City 
Manager, estein@ci-mt-angel.or.us, 503-845-
9291 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:    
Conduct a first and second reading of an ordinance granting Mount Angel Telephone Company a non-
exclusive franchise to operate a telecommunications system in the city of Mt. Angel.     
 
BACKGROUND:   
The franchise agreement for Mount Angel Telephone Company expires on July 1, 2016.  The City 
Attorney has drafted a new and updated franchise agreement, reflecting the company’s operations now 
as a telecommunications services provider (telephone, cable and Internet.)    
 
The highlights of the new franchise agreement include:   
 The franchise grants Mount Angel Telephone a franchise for ten years to operate a 

telecommunications system within the city of Mt. Angel. 
 The franchise fee is 7% of revenues derived annually from the provision of telecommunications 

services.  This is an increase of 2%.  The amount currently collected is 5% of gross revenues.    
 The effective date of the new franchise is July 1, 2016.  

 
The agreement/ordinance is still being negotiated between the City Attorney and legal counsel for 
Mt. Angel Telephone.  Other highlights of the new franchise agreement will be provided at the 
meeting.   
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to conduct a first and second reading and approve AN ORDINANCE GRANTING MOUNT 
ANGEL TELEPHONE COMPANY A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO OPERATE WITHIN THE 
CITY OF MT. ANGEL AND TO PLACE, ERECT, MAINTAIN, LAY AND OPERATE IN, UPON, 
OVER AND UNDER THE PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY NECESSARY WIRES AND OTHER 
APPURTENANCES TO PROVIDE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF 
MT. ANGEL. 
 

Item #11d

Page 48 of 59



    

ATTACHMENTS: A – Draft Ordinance  

Item #11d

Page 49 of 59



 

Page 1 of 9 

ORDINANCE NO.  ___ 
CITY DRAFT 3.14– MATC Comments 4.10.16 

 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING MOUNT ANGEL TELEPHONE COMPANY A FRANCHISE TO 
OPERATE WITHIN THE CITY OF MT. ANGEL AND TO PLACE, ERECT, MAINTAIN, LAY 

AND OPERATE IN, UPON, OVER AND UNDER THE PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY 
NECESSARY WIRES AND OTHER APPURTENANCES  TO PROVIDE 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF MT. ANGEL. 
 
THE CITY OF MT. ANGEL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.   QUALIFICATIONS:   Upon careful consideration of Mount Angel Telephone 
Company's legal, financial and technical qualifications, the City is satisfied that all qualifications have 
been met. 
 
SECTION 2.   SHORT TITLE:   This ordinance shall be known as the "MOUNT ANGEL 
TELEPHONE COMPANY FRANCHISE". 
 
SECTION 3.   DEFINITIONS:   For the purpose of this ordinance, the following terms, phrases and 
words shall have the meaning given herein.  When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the 
present tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and vice versa.  The word "shall" 
always mandatory: 
 

3.1  "CITY" is the City of Mt. Angel, a municipal corporation under the laws of the State of 
Oregon. 
 
3.2  "COMPANY or “GRANTEE” refers to and is the Mount Angel Telephone Company and its 
successors and assigns. 
 
3.3  "COUNCIL" is the City Council of the City of Mt. Angel, or its designated representative. 
 

   
 

  
3.5  "FACILITIES" refer to and are all facilities used to provide Telecommunications Services 

into, within and through the City and include plants, works, systems, lines, cables, fiber, 
conduit, equipment, underground links, switches, wires and radio links. 

 
3.6  "PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION" refers to and is the Public Utility Commission of the 

State of Oregon or other authority succeeding to the regulatory powers of The Public Utility 
Commission of the State of Oregon. 

 
3.7  "REVENUES" refers to any and all revenue derived directly or indirectly by  the Company 

or its affiliates or agents from the operation of its Telecommunications System located in the 
City’s Streets and Public Ways, limits, less net uncollectibles from such revenueswithin the 

Commented [CM1]: This is a draft.  Please ignore 
numbering and formatting edits for now.   
 
All amendments are shown in a “track changes” form.   
 
The City used the parties’ existing franchise.  Where there 
are amendments, they are made primarily to ensure that this 
agreement is reasonably comparable with similar providers’ 
agreements. 
 
JIM:  If a provision strikes you as unreasonable or if 
anything is unclear, please don’t hesitate to call me so we 
can hash things out over the phone.   

Item #11d Attachment A

Page 50 of 59



 

Page 2 of 9 

municipal boundaries of the City for the provision of services to customers within the City, 
less bad debt write-offs, taxes or fees paid on the services provided within the City, and 
directory or internet advertising revenue including, but not limited to, yellow page, white 
page, banner advertisement and electronic publishing, or refunds, rebates or discounts made to 
customers. 

 
3.8  "STREETS AND PUBLIC WAYS" means the surface of the space above and below any 

public street, sidewalk, alley, or other public way of any type whatsoever, now or hereafter 
existing as such within the City. 

 
3.9  “TELECOMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM” means any system used to transmit information 

including, but not limited to voice, video, or data andtelephone calls without regard to the 
transmission protocol employed, whether or not the transmission medium is owned by the 
ProviderCompany itself and whether or not the transmission medium is wireline.  
Telecommunications Services includes all forms of telephone services and voice, video, data 
or information transport-over internet protocol (VOIP) but does not include: internet/data 
services, cable service; , video provided over the internet, or open video system service, 
telecommunications. Telecommunication Services also does not include services provided 
without using the Public Rights of Way; over-the-air radio or television broadcasting to the 
public-at-large from Facilities licensed by the Federal Communications Commission or any 
successor thereto; ptor direct-to-home satellite service. 

 
SECTION 4.   GRANT OF FRANCHISE; TERM AND TERMINATION 
 

4.1   Grant. The Company is hereby granted for itself, subject to the terms and conditions of this 
ordinance, a non-exclusive franchise, authority from and after the effective date hereof to 
construct, operate and maintain a Telecommunication System within the public rights-of-way 
within the City, provided, however, that the terms of the franchise must be accepted by 
Grantee, in writing, signed by an officer of the corporation within thirty (30) days after the 
date this ordinance is passed by the City. 

 
4.2 City Charter and General Ordinances to Apply.  This Franchise is subject to the Charter and 

general ordinance provisions passed pursuant thereto, now in effect or hereafter made 
effective.  Nothing in this Franchise shall be deemed to waive or alter any requirements of 
City codes and ordinances. 

 
4.3 Use of public streets and ways. For the purpose of operating and maintaining a 

Telecommunications System, the Grantee may erect, install, construct, repair, replacerreplace, 
reconstruct, and maintain in, on, over, under, upon, across, and along the public streets and 
ways such wires, cables, conductors, ducts, conduits, vaults, manholes, amplifiers, appliances, 
pedestals, attachments, and other property and equipment as are necessary and appurtenant to 
the operation of the Telecommunications System, and to place all equipment necessary or 
convenient for the transmission of signals upon the poles or in ducts either separately or in 
conjunction with any public utility maintaining the same in the City.  Prior to construction or 

Formatted: Underline

Item #11d Attachment A

Page 51 of 59



 

Page 3 of 9 

alteration, however, the Grantee shall in each case file plans with the appropriate City 
agencies, and receive written approval before proceeding. 

 
4.4 Duration and effective date.   The term of the franchise and all rights, privileges, obligations 

and restrictions pertaining thereto shall be ____ (__)fifteen (15) years from the effective date 
of the franchise unless terminated sooner as hereinafter provided.  The effective date of the 
franchise shall be ______________July 1, 2016 unless the Grantee fails to accept this 
agreement, under the provisions of Section 10, in which event it shall be null and void. 

 
4.5   Conflict Resolution and Termination.  If any dispute arises in regard to any terms or 

conditions of this Agreement, the Parties shall first meet and engage in good faith discussions 
with the objective of settling the dispute within 10 business days after either party requests 
such a meeting.  If the good faith discussion does not resolve the dispute, the City may, after 
providing at least 1430 days’ written notice of the alleged breach as well as a reasonable 
opportunity for the Company to cure, terminate this agreement if the Company:  a) fails file 
and maintain the insurance required by the Franchise; 2) repeatedly fails to meet the 
franchise fee payment or Facility relocation or removal obligations established in this 
Franchise; c) sells, leases, assigns, or transfers majority control of the Franchise in violation 
of this Agreement;  d) repeatedly fails to safely maintain Facilities under thereasonable (as 
determined by the standards in the industry) standards prescribed by the City.   

 
   

SECTION 5.  COMPENSATION: 
 

5.1    Franchise Fee.   As compensation in consideration of permission to use the streets and public 
ways of the City for the construction, operation, maintenance and reconstruction of a 
Telecommunication System within the City, the Company shall pay to the City an amount 
equal to seven percent (7%) of the Revenues derived annually from the provision of 
Telecommunications Services to customers within the City. 

 
5.2   Payment Schedule.   For the franchise fee owed on revenue received after the effective date of 

this ordinance, payment shall be due not later than sixty (60) days following the end of each 
calendar year quarter.  Payments at the beginning and end of the term of this ordinance shall 
be prorated.  All payments shall be made to the City. 

 
5.3    Audit and Recomputation.   No acceptance of any payment shall be construed as an accord 

that the amount paid, is in fact, the correct amount, nor shall such acceptance of payment be 
construed as a release of any claim the City may have for further or additional sums payable.  
All amounts paid shall be subject to audit and recomputation by the City.   In the event that 
recomputation results in additional revenue to be paid to the City, such amount shall be paid 
within the first quarter of the fiscal year following the fiscal year in which Company received 
the revenues and shall be subject to a ten percent (10%) interest charge commencing on the 
first day of the fiscal year following the fiscal year in which Company received the revenues.  
After any final adjustments to a year's franchise fee have been made by Company, if the City 
has a reasonable basis for conducting an independent audit and the independent audit reveals 

Item #11d Attachment A

Page 52 of 59



 

Page 4 of 9 

that Company has failed to pay the City within two percent (2%) or more of the amount 
actually owed the City in any one fiscal year, the Company shall reimburse the City for the 
cost of the independent audit within sixty (60) days after the receipt of a written statement 
from the City.  Such reimbursement shall be in addition to the regularly required franchise fee 
payment. 

 
5.4    Franchise Fee Payment in Lieu of Other Fees.   Payment of the franchise fee by the Company 

is accepted by the City in lieu of any occupancy tax, license, fee or similar tax, assessment or 
excise upon the privilege of doing business or in connection with the physical operation 
thereof, but does not exempt the Company from any lawful taxation upon its real property, 
sales and use taxes or any other tax not related to the franchise or the physical operation 
thereof. 

 
Payment of Maximum Franchise Fee Permissible.  In the event that any law shall limit or 
prevent the City from imposing a franchise fee in the amount provided for herein, Grantee 
shall pay to the City at the times provided for the maximum permissible amount.  Grantee 
shall further make a good faith effort to obtain any possible waiver or permission to pay the 
full amount provided for herein.  In the event the maximum permissible amount is less than 
seven percent (7%), and the law or rule or regulation establishing the maximum permissible 
amount subsequently is repealed or amended to permit a higher amount, then Grantee shall 
pay the higher amount. 

 
             
SECTION 6.  CONDUCT OF BUSINESS: 
 

6.1    Conduct of Business.   The Company may establish, from time to time, such rules, 
regulations, terms and conditions governing the conduct of its business as shall be reasonably 
necessary to enable the Company to exercise its rights and perform its obligations under this 
franchise; provided, however, that such rules, regulations, terms and conditions shall not be 
in conflict with This Agreement or the laws of the City or State of Oregon. 

 
6.2    Tariffs on File.   The Company shall keep on file in its office in Mt. Angel, Oregon, or other 

location in the vicinity copies of all its tariffs currently in effect and on file with the Public 
Utility Commission.  Said tariffs shall be available for inspection by the public. 

 
6.3    Compliance with PUC Regulations.   The Company shall comply with all rules and 

regulations adopted by the Public Utility Commission. 
 

6.4    Compliance with Company Tariffs.   The Company shall furnish Telecommunication 
Services within the City and to all persons, businesses and industries at the rates and under 
the terms and conditions set forth in its tariffs on file with the Public Utility Commission. 

 
6.5    Applicability of Company Tariffs.   The City and Company recognize that the lawful 

provisions of the Company's tariffs on file and in effect with the Public Utility Commission 

Commented [LGLG2]: Jim, can you please 
provide the tariffs that are currently 

on file? 

Commented [CM3]: City will need to review 
your tariffs before agreeing to this 

section. 

Item #11d Attachment A

Page 53 of 59



 

Page 5 of 9 

are controlling over any inconsistent provision in this franchise dealing with the same subject 
matter. 

 
SECTION 7.  COMPLIANCE WITH CONSTRUCTION & TECHNICAL STANDARDS:   
Company shall construct, install, operate, and maintain its system in a manner consistent with applicable 
City and state construction standards. 
 

7.1    Underground Cable.   Present and future under-grounding of cables is strongly encouraged.  
Cables, fibers, or conduit shall be installed underground where all existing utilities are 
already underground, where all utilities are placed underground, or where statute or 
ordinance requires utilities to be placed underground.  Previously installed lines shall be 
under-grounded in concert with other utilities pursuant to the general ordinances of the City 
or applicable State law.  Notwithstanding the immediately preceding, if only high voltage 
electric facilities remain above ground solely for safety purposes, then the Company 
shallmay place its facilities above ground. 

 
7.2    Location and Removal of Lines and Poles.   The Company shall arrange its lines, cables, and 

other appurtenances, on both public and private property, in such a manner as to cause no 
unreasonable interference with the use of said public or private property by any person.  In 
the event of such interference, the City may require the removal of the Company's lines, 
cables, and appurtenances from the property in question, which shall be done at Company's 
sole cost expense. 

 
7.3    Construction and Use of Poles.   All structures, lines and equipment erected by the Company 

within the City shall be located so as to cause minimum interference with the proper use of 
streets, alleys, easements and other public ways and places and to cause minimum 
interference with the rights or reasonable convenience of property owners, and the Company 
shall comply with all lawful ordinances of the City now and hereafter in force.  Existing 
poles, posts, and other such structures of the electric power system or other public utility 
shall be used to the extent practicable.   

 
7.4    Restoration.   In case of any disturbance of pavement, sidewalk, driveway or other surfacing, 

the Company shall at its own cost and expense and in a manner approved by the City, 
replace and restore all paving, sidewalk, driveway or surface so disturbed in as good 
condition as before said work was commenced. 

      
7.5 Relocation.   In the event that at any time during the period of this franchise the City shall 

lawfully elect to alter or change any street, alley, easement or other public way requiring the 
relocation of the facilities of the Company, then in such event the Company upon reasonable 
notice by the City, shall remove, relay and relocate the same at its own expense. 

 
7.6  Temporary Removal.   The Company shall, on the request of any person holding a building 

moving permit issued by the City, temporarily raise or lower its lines to permit the moving of 
buildings.  The expense of such temporary removal shall be paid by the person requesting the 
same, and the Company shall have the authority to require such payment in advance. 

Item #11d Attachment A

Page 54 of 59



 

Page 6 of 9 

 
7.7  Trimming of Trees.   Subject to any applicable City rules, regulations, or ordinances, the 

Company shall have the authority to trim trees upon and overhanging all streets, alleys, 
easements, sidewalks and public places of the City so as to prevent the branches of such trees 
from coming into contact with the facilities of the Company. 

 
7.8  Facility Inspection.   The City shall have the right to inspect, at all reasonable times, any 

portion of the Company's system. 
 

7.9  Maps.   The Company shall prepare and submit to the City a map showing the location of its 
distribution system within the City, showing location of all appurtenances incident to the 
distribution system, insofar as such facilities can reasonably be determined.  The map shall 
be revised no more frequently than annually by the addition of the information hereby 
required as the system is extended or revised.  Subject to any disclosure requirements under 
Oregon’s Public Records law, the City agrees that any such maps shall not be used by it or 
disseminated to the public for use in locating underground facilities. 

 
7.10  Regulation.  It is hereby agreed that at all times the power and right to regulate in the public 

interest the exercise of the privileges permitted by this Franchise shall remain in and be 
vested in the Council of the City of Mt. Angel.  Consistent with federal and state law, 
Grantee hereby agrees that the City may regulate Grantee in a manner consistent with federal 
and state law.  The City reserves the right to delegate authority for regulatory activity, in 
whatever manner the City Council or its designee deems appropriate. 

 
7.11  Removal of Facilities Upon Expiration:  Removal of Facilities Upon Expiration..  In the 
event of the expiration of the term of the Franchise, unless the Franchise is renewed or extended, 
the rights of Grantee immediately shall be divested without further act by the City.  Thereafter, 
Grantee shall within 60180 days remove its Facilities, structures or property from the streets and 
public ways and shall promptly restore the streets and public ways to such condition as the City 
may require at Grantee’s sole expense.  In the event of failure by Grantee to properly and promptly 
perform such work, then the City may perform the work and collect the cost thereof from Grantee.  
The cost thereof shall be a lien upon the Telecommunications System of Grantee and may be set-
off against any sums owed Grantee by City. 

 
 
7.12 Subject to the Oregon Public Records Law, whenever, pursuant to this Franchise 
Agreement, Grantee shall make available for inspection by the City or submit to the City reports 
containing information considered proprietary by the Grantee, the City shall not disclose or release 
such reports or information to the public without Grantee's prior written consent provided Grantee 
has noted such information as proprietary in writing at the time of submission 

 
 
SECTION 8.   INDEMNIFICATION OF THE CITY; INSURANCE: 
 

Item #11d Attachment A

Page 55 of 59



 

Page 7 of 9 

8.1  City Held Harmless/Insurance.     Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 
City, its officers, agents and employees, from any and all liability, loss, cost, damage, or 
expense either to itself or to persons or property of others, including but not limited to 
attorney fees, which may occur as a result of or related to the exercise of the rights and 
privileges in this Agreement; unless such liability, loss, cost, damage or expense is caused by 
the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the City, its officers, agents or employees.   

 
8.2  Grantee shall have in full force and effect, and file evidence thereof with the City, a good and 

sufficient policy (or policies) covering $3,000,000 personal injury each person, $3,000,000 
personal injury each accident, and $1,000,000 property damage with policy (or policies) to 
be executed by an insurance company or companies authorized and qualified to do business 
in the State of Oregon.  This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 

 

 8.2  Notice to Company.   The City will provide notice to the Company of the pendency of any 
claim or action against the City arising out of the exercise by the Company of its franchise rights. 

 
8.4  Reimbursement of Costs.  Grantee shall pay all reasonable expenses incurred by the City, its 

officers, agents and employees in defending itself with regard to all damages and penalties 
mentioned in this Section 8. except those attributable to the negligence or willful misconduct 
of the City, its officers, agents or employees.  These expenses shall include all out-of-pocket 
expenses, such as consultant or attorney fees. 

 
8.5  Notice of Cancellation or Reduction in Coverage.  The insurance policies mentioned above 

shall contain the following endorsement and shall be maintained throughout the duration of 
the Franchise: 

 
“It is hereby understood and agreed that, should any of the above described policies be 
cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the issuing insurer will endeavor to mail 30 days 
written notice (10 days if due to non-payment of premium) to the certificate holder, but 
failure to do so shall impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the insurer, its agents 
or representatives.” 

 
8.6  Evidence of Insurance Filed.  All policies of insurance or certified copies thereof and written 

evidence of payment of required premiums shall be filed and maintained with the City during 
the term of the Franchise. 

 
SECTION 9.   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS: 
 

9.1  Assignment.   The Company shall not transfer or assign any rights under this franchise to a 
third party, excepting only corporate reorganizations of the Company not including a third 
party, unless the City shall approve such transfer or assignment in writing.  Approval of the 
transfer or assignment shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Any City-approved transferee or 
assignee shall remain subject to the terms of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
the Company may assign this franchise to a parent company upon written notice to the City. 

Item #11d Attachment A

Page 56 of 59



 

Page 8 of 9 

 
9.2  Saving Clause.   If any portion of this franchise ordinance is declared illegal or void by a 

court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the ordinance shall survive and not be 
affected thereby.  In such case, the parties shall proceed with due diligence to attempt to draft 
provisions that will achieve the original intent.       

 
9.3  Entire Agreement.   This franchise agreement contains the entire agreement between the 

parties, supersedes all prior agreements or proposals except as specifically set forth herein, 
and cannot be changed orally but only by the instrument in writing executed by the parties. 

 
9.4  Attorney Fees.   If suit or action is instituted for any cause arising out of or in any way 

connected with this franchise ordinance, the prevailing party in the trial court and on any 
appeal shall recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs of expert witness to be set by such 
trial and appellate court. 

 
SECTION 11.   WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE:   The Company shall, within thirty (30) days after passage 
of this ordinance, file in the office of the City Recorder of the City of Mt. Angel an acceptance of this 
ordinance, executed by Company in a form approved by the City.  The failure on the part of Company to 
file such written acceptance within such time shall be deemed an abandonment and rejection of the rights 
and privileges conferred hereby and this ordinance shall thereupon be null and void.  Such acceptance 
shall be unqualified and shall be construed to be an acceptance of all the terms, conditions and restrictions 
contained in this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 12.  REPEALING CLAUSE:  Ordinance ____ is hereby repealed and replaced. 
 
SECTION 13. EFFECTIVE DATE:  This ordinance shall become effective on ____________ and 
remain in effect for the duration as stated in Section 4.4. 
 
 
Passed by the City Council this ____ day of ________, 2016. 
 
First Reading:   AYES:         NAYS:          
 
Passed by the City Council this ______ day of __________, 2016 
 
Second Reading:  AYES:      NAYS:      
 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR this _____ day of _______, 2016 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
       

ATTESTED BY:         
   _______________________________________ 

Item #11d Attachment A

Page 57 of 59



 

Page 9 of 9 

       
Filed in the office of the City Recorder this _____ day of __________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 

Item #11d Attachment A

Page 58 of 59



CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    May 2, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution   Motion  Information   

Date Prepared:  April 27, 2016 Dept.:  Administration 

SUBJECT:  Façade Improvement Grant Program 
Contact Person for this Item:  Justin Hogue, 
Assistant to the City Manager, jhogue@ci.mt-
angel.or.us, (503) 845-9291 

 
RECOMMENDATION:    
Award Façade Improvement Grant funding made available through the Marion County Community Grant, City 
of Mt. Angel, and the Chamber of Commerce. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
The City was awarded $18,000 from Marion County to do a second round of façade improvement work. The 
Chamber of Commerce has pledged to contribute $500.00 towards each application and the City has 
approximately $2,000 remaining from the prior year’s Façade Improvement Grant. 
 
The City received 6 applications to participate in the Façade Improvement Grant Program. On February 22nd the 
Design Review Board met to review the applications submitted, provide feedback on proposed improvements, and 
suggest design elements that would further enhance the structures’ facades and complement the Bavarian theme. The 
City has since received supplemental information from several applicants to reflect recommendations provided by the 
Design Review Board.  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
Staff will provide recommendations during the next regular City Council meeting. 
 

Item #11e

Page 59 of 59

mailto:jhogue@ci.mt-angel.or.us
mailto:jhogue@ci.mt-angel.or.us



